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ARG&Co.LLP
Cha rtered Accou nta nts

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the N{embers of DLF Aspinwal Hotels private Limited

Repor on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial statements

Opinion

we have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DLF Aspinwal Hotels private Limited("the comPanr"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at Nfarch 31, 2025, the statement of profit andLoss' including the statement of other comprehensive Income, the cash Flow Statement and theStatement of Changes in Equiry for the y"u, th"r, ended, and notes to the frnancial statements, rncluding asummary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our informatio-n and according to the explanations given to us, theaforesaid Ind AS financtal statements glve the rnformation ,.qr#.a by the companies Act, 201,3 (,,theAct") in the manner so required and gr.r" o true and fair view in conformity with th. ,..orrrtr.g principlesgenerally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at N,Iarch 31, 2o25,its loss inclujrngother comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes ir..q.rity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

\Ye conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the standards on Auditing(sAs)' as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. our responsibilities under those standards are furtherdescribed in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial statements section of ourreport' we are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics, issued by the Instituteof chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirernents that are relevant to our audit ofthe financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have ful6rlledour other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirernents and the Code of Ethics. we believethat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to pro'ide a basis for our auditopinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Infotmation other than the Financial Statements and Auditotrs Repot Theteon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the prepararion of other information. The otherinformation comprises the informatio, inaudea in the Annual repoft, but does not include the Ind ASftnancial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

our opinion on the Ind AS f,rnancial statements does not cover the other information and we do notexpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, ouf responsibility is to read the otherinformation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsiste,t wirh thefinanciar statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially rnisstated.

If, based on the work we have performed' we coflclude that there is a material misstatement of this otherinformation, we are required to report that fact.We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management fot the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act withrespect to the preparation of these Ind AS Frnancial statements that give a true and fair- r,iew of the financialposition, financiai performance including other comprehensive rr,.oi., cash flows and changes rn equity ofthe cornpany in accordance with the accounting principles generally o...pt.d in India, includi,g the IndianAccounting standards (Ind AS) specified orrdo ,..tion 133 of the Act read with [the companies (IndianAccounting Standards) Rules, 201'5, as amendedJ. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
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accountiflg records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prodent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the acc:uracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that gpve a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud of error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company,s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to Iiquidate the Company or t;
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditot's Responsibilities fot the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 

^ 
h€h level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists. Nfisstatements
can arise from fraud or effor and are considered rn tetlal if, individually or in the a#regte, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
ftnancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit.'We also:

' Identify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a m^tefla,l misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

' Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that arc appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(, of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a mateflal uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast signifrcant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a rn tert^l uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modi$,
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, furure events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
conceffl.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS fmancial statemeflts, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

'S7e communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

^ty 
significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identi$, during our audit.
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Sre also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Repot on Othet Legal and Regulatory Requitements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2O2O ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 1,43 of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified ln pa:.rrgraphs 3 and, 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Sectio n M3Q) of the Act, we reporr that:

(^) \We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, ProPer books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

G) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of -hurrg., in Equity dealt with
by this Report ate tn agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 1'33 of the Act, read with Companies 6tndian Accounting Standirds) Rules,
201,5, as amended;

G) On the basis of the written rePresentations received from the directors as on N{arch 31,2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Sectio n 164 Q) "f 

the Act;

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over frnancial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report;

G) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the company has not paid or provided any manageial remuneration as defined by the piovisions of
the section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(h) !7ith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201,4, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations glven to us:

i' The Company does not have any pending Iitigations which would impact its financial
position;

The ComPany did not have any long-term contracts inctuding derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

u.

111. There were no amounts which rvere required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

4 The N{anagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which 

^re 
m^teflal either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned

or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or afly other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entiry, including foreign entity
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("Intermediaries'), with the understandirrg, whether recorded in writing or othenxrise, thatthe Intermedrary shall, whether, d;.'ectly L inair..tly lend or invest in other persons orentities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (..UltimateBeneficiaries') or provide 
^ny 

gaaruntee, security or the like on behalf of the UltimateBeneficiaries;

b) The N{anagement has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds(which are material either individually or in the- aggregate) have been received by theCompany from any person or entiry'including for?grr"..rtity 1;f,rrrding parties,), withthe understanding, whether recordJ r, *.iuolg or o1herwi.., ih", the company sha[whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in ltrr., persons or entities identified it anymanner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding barty ("ultimate Beneficiaries,) orprovide 
^ny 

gaarantee, security or the like on behalf or a. Ultimate Beneficiaries;

t) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate inthe circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that therepresentations under sub-clause (i) and @) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has not paid or declared any divldend during the year, accordingly theprovision of section 723 of the Act are not applicable to the .oLp*y.

The ComPany has used a thfud party operated accounting soft'ware for maintaining itsbooks of account, based or, .*r-ioation of service orgaiirrtion controls report (SoC
report), we noted that the audit trail feature of the said software was enabled ,rri op.*t.dthroughout the year for all relevant transactions recorcled in the software. Further, during
the course of our audit, based on the examination of such repotr, we did not come acrossany instance of audit traiT feaql being tampered wiit. Additionally, based on
examination of SoC report, the audit trail iri respect of such software has been recorded
and preserved ln fult compliance with the rlquirements of section 12g(5) of the
Companies Acq 2013, in respect 91ft. financialyear ended March 31,,2o2;.Further, in
respect of the financial yea.rs ended N{arch 3L,2024,in the absence of SOC report for the
Ptl:d t-"- April 7, 2023 to December 31, 2023, we are unable to assess whether the
audit trail has been preserved as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

a
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ICAI Finn R.go. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
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"Annexute A" to the Auditot's Report of even date to the members DLF Aspinwal Hotels ptivate
Limited, on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended on Match 31,2025.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the true and, fau
view of the Ind AS financial statements of the company and .orrrld..irrg the information and explanations
glven to us and books of accounts and other records provided to us during the normal course of audit, we
hereby report that -

r)

1ii)

,o

4

b)

In respect of Companl s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets, according to
information & explanation and representation given-to us:

(A) The comPany has maintained proper records showing futl particulars, including
quantitative details and sinrations of the Property, Plant and Equipment and relevani
details of right of use assets

(B) Since the Company does not have any intangible assets, hence reporting under clause 3 (i)
(r) (B) of the order is nor applicable to the company.

Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the year.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies w-ere noticed
on such verification.

v

r)

.) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of all immovable
property are in the name of the company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including rights of Use Assets) and intangible assets during the
yeaf.

e) According to information & explanations and representations given to us by the management, no
proceedings has been initiated or are pending against the comp any for hotding any benami
proPerty under Benami Transactions @rohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(r) The company does not have any inventory and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iixu) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information & explanation glven to us, the Company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of t 5 crore, n a#egate, at any points of time during the year,
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and henie reporting
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information & explanation glven to us, during the year the Company has not
provided any security or guarantee or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, ftrms and limited liability partnerships or other parties covered.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (r1) (a) to (g of the order are not applicable to the
Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provision of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and accordingly the requirement ro report
on clause 3(rv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

T
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v)

vi)

vii)

According to the information & explanation glven to us, Company has not accepted any deposit or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) ;f the Order is not
applicable.

N{aintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities cagied out by the
Company. Flence, reporting under clause (rr) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues,

^) According to the records of the company, the company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state io.,r.u.r.., income-tax, sal.s-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, dury of excise, value added tax, cess and, any other statutory dues
applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations g'iven to us, no undisputed amounts payabte in
respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs d*ay, excise duty, value added tax
and cess v/ere outstaflding, as at N{arch 31,,2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

b) According Per the information and explanations given to us, no dues referred in sub-clause (a) are
pending which have been not deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information & explanation gtven to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1,961, (43 of 1,961). . Accordln$y, the
requirement to report on clause 3("rrr) of the order is not applicable to the company.

4 According to the information & explanation glven to us, the company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) According to the information & explanation glven to us, the Company has not been declared
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government authority.

.) According to the information & explanation glven to us, the Company has not taken any term loan
during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and, hence,
reporting under clause 3(i"X.) of the Order is not applicable.

d) Accotding to the information & explanation gtven to us, on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used
during the year for long-term pulposes by the Company.

.) The company does not have any associate, joint venture or subsidiary company. Accord"ingly,
reporting under clause 3(o)G) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

v

"*)

L9

x)

0 The company does not have any associate, joint venture or subsidiary company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(oX0 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

n According to the information & explanation glven to us, the company has not raised money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, thl
provision of clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable.

b) Company has not made an1, preferential allotment or private placement of share or convertible
debentures. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(x)@) of the order is not applicable.

;q-\
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x1i)

xl)
(") To the best of our knowledge and According to the information & explanation glven to us, no

fraud by the Company or 
^rry 

fraud on the Compurry has been ,oti..d o, ,"por"*d during the
yeaf.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-sectio n (1,2) of section 143 of the Companies Ac' 2013
has been filed by cost auditors/secretaial atditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2074withthe Central Goveinment.

G) According to the information & explanation glven to us, no whistle blower complaint has been
received during the year by company.

In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company is not a
Nidhi company. Hence the provision of clause 3(xr) (a) to (c) of the order is not appiicable to the
company.

"-) According to the information & explanations glven to us, all transactions defined under Section
188 of the Act ,T itt compliance with Section 188 and details of these transactions are properly
disclosed in the Financial Statements. Further, Section 1,77 of the Act is not applicabl- to the
Company.

xtv) According to the information & explanations glven to us, Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system under provisions of Section 138 of the
Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3 (lrr") (a) and (b) "f the Order is not applicable to the
comPany.

xv) In our opinion the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected with its directors as referred under provisions of section 792 of the Companies
Act,2013.

E In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company
is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserves Bank of India Aci,
1'934. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(""D (a) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financials or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(""ixb) is not applicable to
the Company.

.) The Company is not a Core Investrnent Company as defined in regulations made by

ffim?:ir:t';ff;;i,:'"'*glv, 
the requirement to report in clause 3(xvr)(c) is not

d)Ih*:x,3:,xiH"l::iffi 
oi'.F:*'m,i:,,fr1::Jffi f,'Jr;,L"_,,jli,l

*"ii) The ComParty has incurred cash losses during the financial year of Rs2.B9 lakhs and no losses
incurred during the immediately preceding financ iar y ear.

"vlii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report in clause 3(xvrii) is not applicable to ihe Company.

.*) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of rcdirzatton of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and N'Ianagement plans and based on our examination of the

\,1

xvt)
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xx)

xxi)

evidence supporting th: assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us tobelieve that arry material uncertainty exists ,i o., the date of the audit report indicating thatCompany is not capable of meeting its liabiJities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this isnot an assurance as to the future viabiJity of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities f^llitg due within a period of one year from the balan-ce sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information & explanations glven to_ us, company is not required to make any
expenditure under corporate social responsibility under prorrisio" of section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xx) (r) & O) "f the order is not applicable to the company.

This clause of the order is applicable to consolidated financial statements. The audit report under
reference is on the standalone financial statements of the company. Consequently, clause (xxi) of
paragraph of the order is not applicable to the company.

v

For and on behalf of
ARG & LLP

trlemb No.
ICAI R.gr.No: 0 /Ns00036
Place: Gurugram
Date 0t \U5\zsZs
UDIN: L55zu6q BfnTB6L0 +Orq
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6tAnnexure - Bt'to the Auditorst Repot

Report on the Internal Financial Conttols undet Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ($tlne Act'r)

In coniunction vzith our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended N'Iarch 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial control, o.r., financial reporting firf'
Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited.

Managementts Responsibility for Internal Financial controls

The Respective Board of Directors- of the comp 
^ny, 

ate responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control o.rer financial reporting criteria-established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control ,tut.d in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, impiementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financ:l;.l controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguurai"g of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of tft. aicountirrg records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies ec{ZOt:.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. 'V7e conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 201,3, to the extent applicable to an aud.it of internal financial controls, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in alt material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequ acy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiven.rr. 6.r, audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an underitandrng of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material ririsstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

!7e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system olr.r firrur,cial repoiting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repoting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparatior, of f-u.rii4 ,trt.-ents for
external Pu{poses in accordance with generally accepted ,..o.rrrtirrg principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes thoie policies urrJpro..dures that (1) 

-periail 
to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and iarrly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of ,n..:o11pg.t*re being *ud. orriy in accordance with,*'/ -(A
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authoraattons of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthoized, r.q.riritioo, use,-oi disposition of the company,s
assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financiai statements.

Inhetent Limitations of Internal Financial Conttols over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial conuols over financial reporting includrng the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to erroror fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intern aL financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
ov-er financial reporting and such internal financiai controls olr-er financial reporting were operati.rg
effectively as at N{arch 31, 2025, based on the internal control over fi.nancial reporting criteria est;btshe;
by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP
Chartered Accoun

&Co

CHARIERED
ACCOUNTANTS* *

NIem No. 5 L
ICAI F'irm R.gn. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
Date:

UDIN:



DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited
u55 I 01 tIR2(X)7t'l'(-037 1.3 I

Rcgd- ()fficc.\ddrcss:Premrscs No. 2?1,'nd Floor, Shopping Nlall,.\r1un \targ,Dlf (-iw, Phase-1, ()urugram, I{anana-122(X)2
Balance Sheet as ar 31st l.darch2025

(Amount in

Assets

Non-current assets

(a) Properr,v", plant and ecluipmcnt

(b) Capital u'ork-in-proppess

(c) Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets

Current assets

(a) Financial assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

(ii) ()ther Bnnk Balances

(iii) Other Financial Assers

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Equiw Share Capital

Other Equiw

Liabilities
Current liabfities
(a) Financial liabihtres

(i) Trade payable

- Total outstanding dues of NISNIFI

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other rhan
N,ISNIE

(ii) Other financial liabilitres

(b) Other current liabihtres

( c) Current tax liabihties Q.ieQ

Total equity and liabilities

12

13

1-+

1. l9
0.75

4.25

3

+

5

2,it87.50

666.19

1.5(l

4.07

76.94

2,t}i7.50

6(t(t.'79

l.5l)

4{).10

33.51

l(t.20

6

7

8

9

ll)

3,636.80 3,645.60

1.00

3,627.01

2.50

0.10

1.00

3,629.91',1

1.31

( ).()6

11

2

't2.19

0.78

0.30

3,636.80 3,645.60

Summan' oI Nlatenal .\ccr.,untrng Pohcies

fhc a.ccompanving notes are 'an inte.gral part <-,[ the tinancial statements

Based on our report of cr-en date atached.

ARG & CO LLP
( -hartercd . \cc( )unt;rnts

(IiRN:01 5l)r)03(r)

[ior lnd on bchirli oi thc Boirrd oI l)rrcctors

DLF Aspinu,al Hotels Private Limited

Kunal U,*:.,n U
l)irector

Chandra Agaru'al
Director

[) [\:( )tit l-1-19f1( ]\o.: 521269 I)l\: 0900-1591kPlacc: (]urusram

I)ate: ()1 \lav 2025

lakhs)

Particulam Note No. As at
31st March 2025

As at
3lst March 2O24
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DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited
t'55 1 01 t tR2007PT',( _037 1 31

Regd. ()ffice.\ddrcss:l)rcrnises \o.221,2nd lrl<x>r, Shopping \Iall..\riun Nlarg,I)lf (,rn', I)hasc-1, (iurugram, [lanaru-122002
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3lst March 2025

Amount in lakhs

I. Income

( )thcr income

Total Income

II. Expenses

Finance costs
()ther expenses

Total Expenses

III Prolit before Tax (I-II)

IV. Tax expense

- (-r-rrrcnt vear

- Ilarlier veAr t'.lx adjustment

V. Profit/(loss) after tax (III-IV)

VI. Other Comprehensive Income
.\ i)ltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

ii)lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B i)ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

ir)lncome tax relating to items that rvill be reclassified to proht or krss

VI[.Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (V-Y!

VIII. Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs 10 per share)
Basic

l)iluted

Summan' of \Iaterial .\ccountinq Policies

r5 23.16 36.21

23.46 36.21

16

11

1.61

18.95

1.33

17.07

20.56 18.40

l8

l9

2.90

5.79

5.91

(0.12)

1'7.81

9.49

922
0.2=

(2.8e) 8.32

(2.8e\ 8.32

(0.00)

(0.00)

0.0i

0.01

2

'fhe accompanving notes are an integral part of the financial statements

\/ Based on our rep()rt of even date atached.

ARG & CO LLP
(-hartcred .\cc( )untants

(lrRN: 010630N/ \ 6) |,7

CH
t) , .

Iior and on behirli of the lJolrd oi [)ircctors

DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited

Umesh Chandra Agarwal
[)irector

l)l\:081-l-1980

lt
ccouNTANT;/_i

Et w..Kunal
[)artner

\o.: 521269

Director

DIN:09004591

l)lacc: ()urugrlm

I)ete: 01 \tav 2025
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Note No.
For the year ended

31st March Z)25
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DLF Aspinwal Flotels Private Limited
LI55 1 01 I IIi.2007t/t',(_037 1 3 1

I{cgcl.()ffice \ddrcss:PremisesNo.22l,2ndFkror,Shopping\lall,.\rjunNlarg,Dlf(.in', I)hase-1,(iurugram.Ilan'ana-'l 22002
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

v

A. Cash flow from operating activiries
Profit betbre tax

Interest income

Interest exPeflses

Operating loss before working capital changes
Adiustments for:
Increase/pecrease) in (lurrent Financial Liabilin'
Increase/([)ecrease) in other currenr Liabilin'
(lncrease)/Decrease in Currerlt asset

l-ess :'l'ax Paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Ifltcrest income

Investment in fixed deposits

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Intcrest p'a-rd

Net cash flow used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

()pening cash and cash ecluivalents
(,losing cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end o[thc vear

*Cash and cash equivalents Comprises of the following:
Balance with scheduled banks

- In current acc()unts

- Rank It12ttu frrr lcss than 3 months

Cash and cash at the end of the

Other disclosures required by Ind-AS 7:

in Liabilities from

2.90

(4.8s)

1.33

(0.63)

1.1'7

(1 1.02)

16.20

(1.81)

3.88

4.85

(43.43)

(38.s8)

(1.33)

(1.33)

(36.03)

40.1 0

1.07

17.81

(3.43)

1.33

15.71

(1.27)

(14.17)

34.20

2.36

36.82

3.43

0.17

3.60

(1.33)

_g!q_
39.10

1.00

40.10

(36.03) 39.10

1.05

3.01

6.02

34.08

40.10

1.19

1.33

(1.33)

4.06

actr!'rtres

lst April2024
lnterest expcnses (cxcluding intercst accrued but not due)

Interest Paid

Balance as on 31 March 2025 1.19

lst April2023
Interest expcnses (cxcluding interest accrued but not duc)

Intercst Paid

Balance as on 3lMarch2024

(B) Changes in Liabilities arising from Investing activities
()ther tltan thosc clisclosed in (-rrsh flovu'statcmcnt. there is uo nou-cash rnovcment in invcsting lctivitics

1.19

1.33

(1.33)

1.19

Summan' of \[aterial accounting policics (rcter notc no. 2)

'l'he accomparrving n()tes ert: an integral part of the t'inancial statcmcnts

,\s per our rcp()rt of even datc

ARG & CO LLP
( -hartercd .\ccoun

(lrlt\: 01

Kunal
l)artrrcr

\[cmbcrsh
*

I)lace: ( )urugrlm
I)erc: 01 \lrrv 2025

o.:521269

l\.h
I )irector

t)l\: 09004591#

I;or and on bchdioi the lJoard o[ l)irectors

DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited

U Chandra Agarwal
l)ircctor
l)l\:081+-+980

E

Particulars For the year ended 31st
Nlarch202.5

(t In lakhs)
For the year ended 31st

March2024

Particulars Non Current
Borrowings

Current Borrowings

Particul,ars Non Current
Borrowings

Curent Borowings

tk

CHAR lER[D
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DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited
l',551 0l FIR2007P',f( _C)31131

Regd. ()fficc.\ddress:l)rcmises No. 221,3nd liloor, Shopping \lall, .-\rjun NIarg,Dlf (,in', phase-[, (]urug'ram, Ilanana-122002
Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended 3lst March 2025

A share In lakhs

B. Convertible Debentures Balance as at 31st March 2025

Balance as at 31st March2025

v C. Other In lakhs

Nature and Purpose of Reserve

(r) Other comprehensive income (OCI) resewe

T'he companv has elected to recoppise changes in farr value of certain investments in equin' securities in the comprehensive income. These

changes are accumulated within the F\'()CI equin'investments resen'e within equit]'. The companv will transfer amounr from this resen'e ro
retain earninpp when the relevent equin' securities will be derecogpised.

v
(i) Equity Component of Compulsorily convertible debentures

'l'hc Companl'had issued 13,25,00,000 0.019/o unsecured (-ompulsorilv (-onvertible Debentures ((-CDs) r>f face value t 10 each aglfegating ro {
13250 lakhs to its existing shareholders on rights issue basis. tiach (lCDs is compulsr>rilv convertible, at the option of CCD Flolders, into one
nurnber of tiquin Shares in one or more tranches within a penod of ten ),ear from the date of allotmenr of the (.(lDs bur not later than the
expin of ten vears.

(ii) Retained Eamings
Represents surplus in statement of Profit and Loss

l'.c1uin' sharcs capital 1.00 1.00 r.00

Compulsonlv (-onvertible I)cbentures 13,250.00 13,250.00

Converrible Debentures 13,250.00

Balance as at lst April2023 (9,628.12) 13,250.00 3,621.59
'I'otal comprehensive income fcrr the vear 8.32 8.32

Balance as at 31st March2024 (9,620.10) ,ii,250.00 3,629.90

Changes during the year (9,620.10) 13,250.00 3,629.90
T<,rtal comprehensive income frrr the vear (2.8e) (2.8e\

Balance as at 31st March 2025 (9,622.99\ ri,250.00 3,627.01

T'he accompanving notes are an integ"ral part of the financial statements.

Based on ()ur rcport of even datc atached.

ARG & CO LLP
( -hirrtcrcd &C
(t''RN:0106

lior ancl on bchalI oI f]rxrrd of [)irccrors

DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited

Agarwal
[)ircctor

HARIERT D

OUNIAIiI,S

$-
rl

u*-IKunal
I)itrtne r

\ [crnbcrs \o.: 521269

I)lrrcc: ( i trrr.r5"ram

[)atc:t)l \tar'2025

Directrlr

09(10+591,h
U:

I) l\:08 l-l+98(l

Particulars Reecwee atrd
eurplus Other

Comprehensive
income

Equitv componentof
compound financiel

imtnrmeats
Total equity

Retained
cernings

Paniculars Balance as at
7st April?:023

Changes duriog
the year

Balance as at
31st March 2024

Changes
during the

yeaf

Balance as at
31st March 2025

Particulars Balrance as at lst Apdl20?A Chang$ ia
during the ye.ar

Balance as at
31st March 2025

Particulars Balance as at
lst April Z)23

Changes ia
during the year

Balance as at
31st March 2024

13.250.00

A'-,/stsL
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DLF Aspinwal Hotels Pdvate Limited
u55101HR2007Pt C037 L31
Regd. Ofiice Add.tess : Ptemises No. 221, 2nd Floor, Shopping Mall, Ajun Marg, DLF City,
Phas e- I, Gurugram, f{ary eta-122002
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Corporate information

DLF Aspinrval Hotels Private Limited ('the Companv) is engaged primadl,r. in the business of development and
gpera.ung the hotels The companv rvas Incotporated on 16,h .\ugust 2007. The registered office is iituated at
Premises No. 22l,2Nd Floor, Shopping Nlall Arjun illalg, DLF Cin, phase-I ,Gurugram - 122002

The Enancial statements for the t'ear ended 31 l\{arch 2025 were authorised and appror.ed by the Board of Dfuectors
on for issue on 01 NIav 2025.

2. Matedal accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements ('financial statements) of the Companr have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standatds (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS) as notiEed by IVlinistry of Corporate Affairs ('NICA)
under Section 133 ofthe Companies Act,2013 ('Act) read with the Companies (ndian Accounting Standads) Rules,
2015, as amended from time to time and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies
Act,2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as app)icable to the Frnancial statements.

The Frrancial stztements have been ptepared on a going concem basis in accordance with accounting principles
generallv accepted in India. Futher, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and Frrancial liabilities which are measured at fait values as explained in relevant accounting
policies. The changes in accounting policies are explained in note 2 (n).

The financial statements are presented in Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest h lakhs, except when
othenvise indicated.

2.2 Summary of matedal accounting policies

a) Curent and non-current classilication

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-cuffenr classificauon. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabilit\. is current when:

reporting penod.

The Compan)'classifies all other liabilities as non-currenr.
\.: i 1 I

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified;, """:'.Ahnr assers and liabilities
i1

\,

v



DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited
u55101HR2007PTC037131
Regd. Of6ce Address : Ptemises No. 221, 2nd Floot, Shopping Mall, A{un Marg, DLF City,
Phase-I, Gurugram, Hary ana-7122002
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Match 2025

The operating cvcle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equirzlen ts.

b) Property, plant and equipment

kngnitior ad initial near'Lrcme

Propertv, Plant and equipment at their initial recognition are stated at theit cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind
AS, the Companv had elected to measure all of its propertl, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP caming
value (deemed cost). The cost comprises putchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directlv
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its vorking condition for the intended use. Anv tade discount and rebates
are deducted in ariving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, onlv when it is probable that future economic benefits associated u.ith

$e itel will flow to the Companv. \r(hen signiFrcant parts of plant and equipment are requfued to be replaced at
intervals, the Compan,r depreciates them separately based on their speci[rc usefirl lives. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed. its cost is recognised in the carq'ing amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition critetia are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statemeni of profit
or loss as incurred. The Companv identifies and detemines cost of each component/ part of the asset sep".rt ly, if
the component/ patt have a cost which is signiFrcant to the total cost ofthe asset and has usefrrl life that is materially
different ftom that of the remaining asset.

Subrcquent neaurcment (deprciation a uvful liuet)

PropertJ', plant and equipment are subsequendy measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation on propert), plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over
the estimated usefirl lives of the assets as follows:.

Asset category* Estimated useful
life

(in years)

Estimated useful life as per
Schedule II to the Companies

Act,2013
(in years)

Buildings
Plant and machinen-
Computers and data processing units

- Sen'ers and nenvorks
- Desktops, laptops and other devices

Furnirure and fixtures
Ofhce equipment
Vehicles

20-60
10-1 5

6

3

5-10
5

8-10

6
a
3

10

5

8-10

60

15

The residual values, usefi.rl lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted prospectivelr', if appropriate.

Deretogni tio n

.\n item ofpropern, plant and equipment and anr signihcant part initialh' recognised is de-recognised upon disposal
or rvhen no furure economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Anv gain or loss atising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal ptoceeds and the catn ing amount of the asset) is
included in the statement ofprofit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

c) Capitalwork-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress rePresents expenditute incurred in respect of capital projects under development and are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment hS-.,eT@5( Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses,
development,/ construction costs, borrowing ce{sr}if6-otErq\ct expendiure.

f.{i crenrenro\o\
I lrtCCOultintrs/ i\*\ i*l\bd/



DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited
U55101HR2007PT C037 lil
Regd. Office Address : Premises No. 22l,Znd Floor, Shopping Mall, Ariun Marg, DLF City,
Phase-I, Gurugram, Hary ana-122002
Notes to Financial Statements for the yer ended 31 MarchzLzl

d) Revenue from contract or services with customer and other streams of revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when conrol of t}le goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods ot sen'ices. The Companv has genetally concluded that it ii thi principal in its revenue arrangemenm
because it tlpicallv controls the goods and services before tansferring them to the customers.

i. Revenue ftom Conttacts with Customem:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable, taking into account contractuall]'
defined terms ofpa)-rnent and excluding taxes ot duties collected on behatf of the govemment and is net of rebates
and discounts. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteda to determine ifit is acting as
principal or agent The Companl, has concluded that it is acting as a pnncipal in all of its revenue arangements.

Revenue is recognised in the income statement to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Companl and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

The Company has applied five stqr model as per Ind AS 1 15 T.evenue from conffacts with customers' to recogriise
tevenue in the Frnancial statements. The Company satisfies a performance obligation and rccognises revenue over
time, if one of the following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the
Company performs; or
b) The Company's petformance creates ot enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or
c) The Company's performance does not cteate an asset v.'ith an alrcmatir-e use to the Compan). and the entiq. has
an enforceable right to par,-rnent for performance completed to date,

For performance obligations where any of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in
time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is rccognised or.er a period of time based on various conditions as included in the contracts u,ith customers

Interest income from banks is accouflted for on an accrual basis on time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and rate applicable.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions reladng to revenue from contracts
with customers are provided in note 2-2 (o).

e) Borrowing costs

Borowing costs directh' attributable to the acquisition and/or construction/production of an asset that necessarih-
takes a substantial period of time to get readl for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. AII other bortos'ing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrorving costs consist
ofintetest and other costs that the Companr- incurs in connection rvith the borrorving of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

f) Taxes

Current income rax

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax ex

ACCOUNTA

ones recognized in other comprehensive inc

*
o

tlv in eqlrin
cept the

CHART E R'c 0
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DLF Aspinwal Hotels Pdvate Limited
u55 101H R2007 PT C037 131
Regd. Office Address : Premises No. 22trZnd Floor, Shopping Mall, Ariun Matg, DLF City,
Phas e- I, Gurug tlm^, Hary ana-122002
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March zlzi

Current income tax assets and liabilities ate measurcd at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tasation authorities. Current tax is determined as the ta-x patzble in respect of taxable income fot the i-ear and is
computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised ouiside prcfit
or lossis recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equitl). aurrent tax irems are
tecognised in correladon to the undedy'ing tansaction either in OCI or ditectll in eqoitr:. Nian"g.-.nt periodicall).
evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which 

"pplicuUt. 
tax reglrlations-are subject

to interpretation and establishes provisions rvhere appropriate.

Deferred tax

Defered tax is provided using the liabiliq method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabihties and their carn-ing amounts for financial reporting pulposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

In respect of taxable temPorarv diffetences associated vith investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporaq: differcnces can be controlled and it is ptobable that
the temporan differences rvill not reverse in the foreseeable futurc

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporan' differences, the carry forward of unused tar credits
and anv unused tax losses. Defered tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against v,hich the deductible temporan differences and the carn forwatd of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The cam'ing amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the defered tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the defefl,ed ta-\ asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabiiities are measuted at the tar rates that are expected to applr in the year when the asset
is realised ot the liabilin'is setded, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantivelv enacted
at the rcporting date.

Deferted tax relating to items rccognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in othet
comprehensive income or in equi$). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the under\ing transaction
either rn OCI ot direcdr in equin.

Defered tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to set offcurrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entitr and the same taxation authoritl..

Sales tax / value added taxes/ GST paid on acquisition ofassets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount ofsales tal / value added taxes/Goods and sen ices tax paid,
except:
> \\hen the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or sen'ices is not recovemble from the taxation authori6., in which

case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable

> \\hen receivables and palables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or palable to, the taxation authorin is included as part of receivables or
palables in the balance sheet.

{sf \ rr.\rj
\lrctt4RTERED

IACCOUNTANISJw



\,-

DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited
U55101HR2007PTC037131
Regd. Office Address : Premises No. 221, 2nd Floor, Shopping Ma[ Arjun Matg, DLF City,
Phase-I, Gurugtam, Hary ana-1212002
Notes to Financial Statements fot the year ended 31 March 2025

g) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each report.ing date, the Companv assesses whether there is anv indication based on intemal/extemal factors, that
an asset maY be impaited. Ifanl such indication exists, the Companr estimates the rccoverable amount of the asset.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGL) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an indiridual asset unless the asset does not
generate cash inflorvs that ate largely independent of those from other assets or groups ofassets. \\hen the carn ing
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaited and is written down to
its recoverable amount and the impairment [oss, including impairment on inventodes, is recognised in the statement
of profit and [oss.

In assessingvalue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present r.alue using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time r.alue of money and the risks specific io the asset. In
determining fait value less costs ofdisposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identiFred, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are coroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publiclr- traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and
forecast calculations generallv cover a period of Frve years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated
and applied to proiect future cash flows after the Frfth r,.ear.

If, at the repotting date there is an indication that a previouslv assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recovetable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recovetable amount. Impairment losses pret iously
recognized ate accordingly revetsed in the statement ofproFrt and loss.

h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short tetm deposits with an
original maturitr of three months ot less, which are subject to an insignificant dsk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash florvs, cash and cash equivalents consist of untestricted cash and short-
term deposits, as de6ned above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as thev are considered an integral part of the
Companr's cash management.

i) Provisions, contingent assets and conringent liabilities

Provisions are tecognized onlv when there is a present obligation (egal or constructive), as a result of past events,
and it is ptobable that an outflorv ofresources embodring economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and when a reliable estimate of the amount ofobligation can be made at the reporting date. Provisions are discounted
to their present values, where the time value of monev is material, using a curent pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liabiliq'. \\hen discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a hnance cost.

\\hen the Companl e\Pects some or all of a pror-ision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
seParate asset, but onlt'rvhen the reimbutsement is vittualll certain. The expense telating to a pror-ision is presented
in rhe statemenr of profit and loss net o[ anr reimbursement.

Onerous conuacts

If the Companl has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured
as a pror-ision. Hos'erer, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Companr- recognises
ant impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

-\n onerous contract is a contract under rvhrch thc i.rnafirid@[e.costs (i.e. the cosrs that the Companr- cannot avoid
because it has the contract) of meeting the oblisg*i rllag',fi. contract exceed th..corromi. birredts expected to. ,. (,ti,1;1 , !. .1.

I \r.tt!i.l,il.i, t:;



DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited
u55101HR2007PTC037131
Regd. Office Address : Premises No. 221, 2nd Floor, Shopping Mall, Ariun Matg, DLF City,
Phase-I, Gurugram, Hary aLrra-722002
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Match 2025

be received undet it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contact,
which is the lowet of the cost of fulfilling it and anv compensation or penalties arising from fail"ure to firl6l it.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilin' is disclosed for:

Possible obligations rvhich will be confirmed onll- b). fut,rr. events not rvhollv within the control o[the Companv
or
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets ate neither rccognised nor dGclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related
asset is disclosed.

) teases

T'he Compan) assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
convevs the right to control the use of an identihed asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Compan)'applies a single recognition and measurement approach flor all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-r.'alue assets. The Companv recognises lease liabilities to make lease pa)'ments and righrof-use
assets representing the nght to use the undedving assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Companv recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the undedying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets iue measured at cost, Iess any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses and adiusted for anv remeasurement oflease liabilities. The cost ofright-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease pal'rnents made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a sraight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated useful lir.es of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset ransfers to the Companv at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, deprcciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Companv recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease paYments to be made over the lease term. The Iease patments include Fr-red parments (including in-substance
fixed palments) less anr lease incentives receivable, variable lease par-ments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease pavments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonabh' cetain to be exercised br the Companr and pavments ofpenalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Companv exercising the option to termhate. Variable lease palments that do not
depeod on an inder or a mte are recognised as e\penses in the petiod in rvhich the event or condition that triggers
the Pa!-ment occufs.

In calculating the present value of lease pa\Tnentst the Companv uses its incremental borroring rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is qot readih- determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease parments made. In addition, the carn'ing amount oflease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease palmqntl (e.g.,lchanges to turure par-ments resulting irom a change
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in an index or rate used to determine such lease palments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the undedl-ing asset.

The Companr's lease liabilities are included in "other financial liabilities',

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Companr applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shor-term leases (i.e. those leases that haye
a lease tetm of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of lorv-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be
low value. Lease paments on short-term leases and leases of low rzlue assets are riclgnised as expense on a sttaight-
line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantiallr all the dsks and rewards of ownetship of an asset ate
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a staight-line basis over the term
of the televant lease. Initial dLect costs incured in negotiating and arranging an opetating lease are added to the
car4-ing amount ofthe leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
tents are recognised as tevenue in the period in which they are eamed. Fit-out rental income is recognised in the
statement ofprofit and loss on accrual basis.

Leases are classiFred as finance leases when substantiallr all of the risks and rewards of oumership ransfer ftom the
Companr to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Companv's
net furYestment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investrnent outshnding in respect of the lease,

k) Financialinstruments

A Frnancial instrument is anv conttact that gives rise to a financial asset ofone entin'and a Frnancial liabiliq. or equiw
instrument of another entif\-.

1) Financial Assets

I nitial reclgnitil n a fi d mear'arement

Financial assets are classiFred, at initial recognition, as subsequendy measured at amottised cost, fair r.alue through
other comprehensir.e income (OCI), and fait value through profit or loss.

The classiFrcation of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the Frnancial asser's contractual cash flow
characterisdcs and the Companr''s business model for managing them. W'ith the exception of trade teceivables that
do not contain a significant Enancing component or for rvhich the Companv has applied the practical expedient, the
Companr initiallv measues a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a Frnancial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, net of transaction costs. Trade rcceivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for rvhich the Companl has appJied the practical expedient ate measured at the transaction price
determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.2 (d) T.evenue from conrracr or sen.ices
with customer and other streams of rer.enue'.

In order for a hnancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
gire rise to cash flovs that are 'soleh' palments ofpdncipal and intercst (SPPI)'on the principal amount outstanding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument [er-e[.
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S u bxq a e n I m ea.surem e n t

i. Financial assets catried at amortised cost - a ftnancial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are mer:

' The asset is held rvithin a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
florvs; and

' Contractual terms of the asset gir.e rise on specified dates to cash florvs that are solel' pa):ments of
principal and interest (SPP! on the principal amounr outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequentlv measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, ioint ventures and associates - Inr.estments in equin.
instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS
27'Separate Financial Statements'.

ul. Investments in other equity instruments - Investments in equi6. instruments rvhich are held for trading
are classified as atfa:r value through profit orloss (F\TPL). For ali orher equirl-instruments, the Companr-
makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument bv instrument basis, to classifrl the
same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCD or fak value through profit or loss
€\,TPL). Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequentlr- transferyedlo statement
of profit and loss. Holvever, the Compan). transfers the cumulative gain or loss within equi6'. Dividend on
such investments are recognised in statement of profit and loss unless the d"ividend cleariv represents a
recovefl' of part of the cost of the investment.

iv. Investments in mutual funds - Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL).

Fair value changes on instruments measured at FYTPL is recognised in the Statement of PrcFrt and Loss unless tle
Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes on instn:ments measured at FVOCI
are tecognised in OCI. -\mounts recognised in OCI are not subsequendr- reclassiFred to the Statement of ProFrt and
Loss.

D e n agxi tio r of f nat d a I a r e t t
A.frnancia.l asset (or, whete applicable, a part of a fmancial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) I
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash florvs from the asset have expired, or
The Compan)'has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pav the received cash florvs in full without material delav to a third part)- under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Companr- has transferred substantiallr- all the risks and rer.vards of the asset,
or O) the Compant' has neither transferred nor retained substantiallv all the risks and rervards of the asset,
but has transferred control o[ the asser.

Continuing invoh'ement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transfered asset is measured at the lou'er of the
original carn'ing amount of the asset and the maximum amount ofconsideration that the Companl could be required
to repar'.

I npai nze n t o-f Ji n a ncia/ as*t
In accordance rvith Ind AS 109, the Companr applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for Frnancial assets.

ECL is the treighred-average oi ditt?rence benveen cash florvs that are due to the Companr in
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effective interest rate, with the respectir-e risks of default occurring as the weights. \\hen estimating the cash flows,
the Compant is required to consider -
o All contractual terms of the financial assets (including preparment and extension) over the expected life of the

assets.

r Cash florvs from the sale of co[ateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

(i) Trade nriuablet
In respect of trade rcceivables, the Companr applies the simplified apptoach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measutement ofloss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime erpected credit losses
ale the exPected ctedit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

(ii ) O t hcr f na ncial are tt
In respect of its other Enancial assets, the Compan)' assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significandy since initial tecognition. If the credit risk has not inceased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measutes the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

\\tren making this assessment, the Compan) uses the change in the risk of a delault occuring over the expected life
ofthe financial asset. To make that assessment, the Companl compares the risk of a default occurring on the Frrancial
asset as at the balance sheet date with the dsk of a default occurring on the Frnancial asset as at the date of initial
tecognition and considers rcasonable and supportable information, that is ar.ailable without undue cost or effort,
that is indicative of significant incteases in credit risk since initial rccognition. The Company assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significandr since initial recognition if the Frnancial asset is determined to
have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-derivative financial liabilities

I tia/ nngtition a meaiuftmefil

Finanoal liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and bonowings and payables, net of direcdr; attributable ftansaction costs.

The Companv's financial liabilities include trade and othet payables, securiq deposits, loans and borrowings and
other financial liabilities including bank overdrafts and Frrancial guarantee contracts.

Subnqwt meaunment

Subsequent to initial recognirion, the measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

l-aarc and bormuingt

.lfter initial recogmtion, interest-bearing loans and borros'ings are subsequenth' measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss rvhen the liabilities are derecognised as rvell ai
through.the EIR amortisation process. -\mortised cost is calculated bv taking into account an1. discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that ate an integtal part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included ai Ernance
costs in the statement ofproFrt and loss.

b-iunda/ gtaru ee conlrait

Financial guarantee conEacts are those contlacts ttrat,rcqdir€ a-.F.arment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specitied parn fails to make a p-a-r'm_ept.\'hen due in accordance with the terms of a debt
insttument. Financial guarantee contracts *. *g"4*fdJif,i?-r$linri"t ti"uiun ut the time the guarantee is issued at
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fait value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directlv attributable to the issusance ofthe guarantee: Subsequenth,,
the liabilin is measued at the highff of the amount of expected loss allorvance determLed as per impairment
requLements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumuladr-e amortization.

De-nrognition oJ-fi rarcial liabilitiet
A financial liabiliq'is de-recognised w'hen the obligation uoder the liabiliq'is discharged or cancelled ot expires.
\\hen an existing Frnancial liabilitl is replaced by another from the same lender on substantial\' different terms, or
the terms of an existing liabilii are substantiallv modified, such an exchange or modification is reated as the de-
recognition of the original liabiliq' and the recognition of a nerv liabi.lic. The difference in the tespective carrling
amounts is tecognised in the statement ofprofit or loss.

3) Reclassification of frnancial ins&uments

The Company determines classi{ication of financial assets and liabilities on initial recogrition. After initial
recognition, no reclassiEcation is made for financial assets which are equig. instruments and Frnancial liabilities. For
financial assets rvhich are debt instruments, a reclassificadon is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior
managemelt detemines change in the business model as a result of extemal ot intemal changes rvhich are significant
to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to extemal pardes. A change in the business model occurs
when the Company eithet begins or ceases to perform an activiq'that is signiFrcant to its operations. Ifthe Company
reclassifres Frnancial assets, it applies the reclassiFrcation prospectiveh from the reclassification date which is the first
day of the immediateh next reporting period follo$/ing the change in business model. The Company does not restate
anv previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gaifls or losses) or intercst.

4) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabi]ities are offset afld the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
curendy enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and senle the liabilities simultaneouslv.

l) Fait value measurement
The Companv measures hnancial instnrments such as Ttade Pavables etc at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabiliq'in an ordetly transaction between
market Participants at the measurement date. The fair r.alue ofan asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market Participants would use when pricing the asset or liabiliE, assuming that market paticipants act in their
economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-Frnancial asset takes into account a market participant's
abiliS' to generate economic benefits bv using the asset in its highest and best use or b\. se ing it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Companr- uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and fot rvhich sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobsen'able inputs.

.\ll assets and liabilities for rvhich fair value is measured or disclosed in the Frnancial statemenrs are categorised within
the fair value hierarchr', described as follorvs, based on the lorvest level input that is significant to the fair value
measufement as a vhole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 - \'aluation techniques for rvhich the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is ditecdr or indirectlv obsen able

. Level 3 - \'aluation techniques for rvhich the lowest level input that is significant to the tair r.alue
measurement is unobsen-able

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the ts on a recurring basis, the Companv determines
rvhether transfers have occurred ben\-een ler-els in assessrng categorisation (based on the lorvest
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External valuers are involved for valuation ofsignificant assets, such as propetties and unquoted financial assets, and
significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement ofixtimal valuers is decided upon annuallv bv
the management. Valuers ate selected based on market knowledge, rcputation, indErendence and rvhether
professional standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Companl- has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabilitr and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

m) Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equir)-
shareholders (after deducting atttibutable taxes) by the weighted avetage number of equity. shares outstanding during
the period. The weighted-average number of equit), shares outstanding during the period is adiusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share spLit, and revene share split (consolidation ofshares) that have
changed the number of equih. shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net proFrt or loss for the period attributabte to equiq.
shareholders and the rveighted-average number of shares outstanding dudng the period are adiusted for the efiecti
of all dilutive potential equity. shares.

n) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Companv applied for the fust-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2024, but do not have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS I l6: Leqses - T"he irICA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
2024, which amended Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liabilin in a Sale and Leaseback. The amendment
specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liabiliq. arising in a sale and leaseback
Eansaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise anv amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of
use it retains. The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods be$nning on or after 1 Aprit 202,1 and must
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind
AS 116.

These amendments had no material impact on the financial statements of the Companr. during the year.

lnd AS I l7: Insurqnce - The I{inistfl- ofCorporate Affais (itICA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Conracts, vide
notiFrcation dated 12 August 202,1, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,202d
which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after I April 202'1.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contacts is a comprehensir.e nerv accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, Presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 rcplaces Ind AS 10,1 Insurance Contracts.
Ind .\S 117 applies to all trpes of insurance contracts, regardless of the tlpe of entities that issue them as rvell as to
certain guarantees and Frnancial instruments vith discretionan participation features; a ferv scope exceptions rvill
applr. Ind ^1S 117 is based on a general model. supplemented br-;

'A speciFrc adaptation for contracts with direct participation feanues (he vatiable fee approach); and

'A simpliFred approach (the premium allocation approach) mainlr for short-duration contracts.

These amendments had no material impact on the financial statements of the Companv during the r.ear.

i{r*o*rEREil
\ tccouNTANTy

Xg

\o\
I

j:



DLF Aspinwal Hotels Pdvate Limited
U55101HR2007PT C03716t
Regd. Office Addtess : Premises No. 22l,2nd Floor, Shopping Mall, Ariun Marg, DLF City,
Phase-I, Gurugram, Hary ana-122002
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March}Lzi

New and amended standards, not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not r.et effective as on the dare

o) Significant management iudgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Companr's financial statements requLes management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the rcported amounts ofrer.enues, expensest assets and liabilities, anJ the related disclosures
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainq' about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the caffling amount of assets or liabilities affected in funre pedods.

Signifi cant management iudgements

The following are signiEcant management judgements in applring the accounting policies of the Company that have
the most significant effect on the financial statements,

Rer'ognitiott oJ'de-femd lax a$et - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be rccognized is based on an assessment
of the probabiliq of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be udlized.
Eualuation of irditztort for inpaimert of asets - The er.aluadon of applicabiliw of indicators of impairment of assets
requites assessment of seveml extemal and intemal factots which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount
of the assets.

Claufication of leasu - T\e Company enters into leasing arangements for various assets. The classification of the
leasing arrangement as a finance lease or opetating lease is based on an assessment of seveml factors, including, but
not limited to, transfer of ormership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estimated
certainq of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset's economic life, proportion of present
value of minimum lease palrnents to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset,

Delemiting the learc tem of LontruL:tt witb rcrcval and termirution oltiotr (Cornpanv as [essee)- The Company determines
the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any petiods covered bv an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonably cettain to be exercised, ot anr periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is
teasonably certain not to be exercised. The Companv has sevetal lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Companv applies judgement in evaluating whethet it is reasonably certain whether or not
to exetcise the option to renew or tetminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive fot it to exetcise either the renewal or termination. After tle commencement date, the Company reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its conuol and affects its abiliq.
to exetcise ot not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., consmrction of signiFrcant leasehold
improvements or significant customisadon to the leased asset).

Inpairment offnanialarralr - .\t each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates obsered over expected life,
the management assesses the erpected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Protitiorc - .\t each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Companl' assesses the requirement of prcvisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. Horvever, the actual
future outcome mav be different from this judgement.

Reuenw Jmm n ract aith cwtomert- The Companv has applied judgements that sigoificantlv affect the determination
of the amount and timing of revenue from conttacts with customers.

Significant estimates

The kel assumptions conceming the future and other ler'sources of estimation uncertainh' at the reporting date,
that har-e a significant risk of ciusing a mate;al i$ustiiant to .the cam ing amounrs <-,f assets and habilities, are
described belorv. The Compant based its assutnpfiong 7p{ eitimates on parameters arailable l,-hen the financial
statements rvere prepared. Existing circumst^n.1,"*iii {ir',rrhntions about future der-elopments, horver-er, mar
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change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are bet'ond the contlol of the Company. Such changes
ate reflected in the assumptions when thev occur.

Net rediiable ualue of inentory -The determination of net realisable value of inventor) invoh,es estimates based on
prevailing market conditions, current prices and expected date of commencement and completion of the project, the
estimated future selling price, cost to complete projects and selling cost. The Companv also inr-olves specialist to
perform valuations of inventories, rvherever required.

Utdal liar of depruiabh/ anottisabh axeh - Nfanagement reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporthg date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that mal. change the utility of assets.

l/alualion of iaulnent Pmperl) - lnvesfient properq'is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS .lO there is a requtement
to disclose fair value as at the balance sheet date. The Compant engaged independent valuation specialists to
determine the fair value of its i -estment propern as at reporting date. The determination of the fair r.alue of
investment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash florvs from the assets (such as lettin5, future
fevenue sffeams, capital values of Frxtures and fittings, any env onmental matters and the overall repair and condition
of the propertf and discount rates applicable to those assets. Io addition, development risks (such as construction
and letting risk) are also taken into considetation when determining the fat r.alue of the properties under
construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Inpaiment of Pnptg plafi eqviprrent, kaestnefi pm?ertiet and CWP -lmpatrment exists when the cam.ing value of an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fait value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash florvs are derived
from the budgets. The recoverable amount is sensiti\,'e to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used.

Defred berelit obligation @BO)-Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of under\ing assumptions
such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. \radation in
these assumptions mar signiFrcantly impact the DBO amount and tle annual deFrned benefit expenses.

f-air valae meatareme divhtum - Nlanagement applies valuation techniques to detemine the fair value of financial
insttuments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent u,ith horv matket participants would price the instrumeflt.

| 'alaation ofirautnenl in wbidiaiet,joilt aefi rcr ard d$lLiater - Investments in subsidiaries, jointventures and associates
are carried at cost. At each balance sheet date, tle management assesses the indicators of impairment of such
investments. This requires assessment of ser.eral extemal and intemal factor including capitalisation rate, kev
assumption used in discounted cash flow models (such as revenue growth, unit price and discount rates) or sales
compadson method rvhich mav affect the carn'ing value of inr'estments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

(thb space hat been intentionalll leJi blank)
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Gross carrying value
As at lst April2023 2,887.50
lddition during the vear

Dcletion during the vear

As at 3lstMarch2024 2,897.50
-\ddition the

Deletir>n/ ustmcnts during the rear

As at 31st March 2025 2,887.50

\*,

DLF Aspinwal Flotels Private Limited
u55 1 01 HR2007PTC037 1 3 I

Regd. ( )tficc ^\ddress:Prcmises No. 221, 2nd Flrxrr, Shopping }lall, ^\rjun \Iarg,Dlf Cin, Phasc-1, Gurugram,Han,ana -l2Z0O2
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

f Property plant and equipment (Amount in lakhs)
*Freehold Land

tNote: The above Properft represent a land parcel admeasuring3.T3 acres situared at Fort Cochin village, Kochi Taluk, Emakulam,
District.

(fhis qace bas been intenliona@ left blank)

/ \21--*,/7-/ V
;/cnnnrrP.ED\
inccouuinursl

d

Accumulated depreciation/ impairment
at lst lrpril2023

-\ddition thc vear

Delerion/ adiustments the lear
As at 31st March 2024

^\ddition during the r-ear

Deletion/ adjustments thc

As at 31st March 2025

Net block:
As at 31st March 2024 2,887.50
As at 31st March 2025 2,887.50



DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited
u551 01 I IR2007tvrc037 1,31

Regcl.()fficc.\ddress:l)remiscs\o.221,2ndliloor,shopping.\lall, \riun\larg,Dlf(-itr',Phase-1,(iurugram,ganana-122002
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31st March 2025

In lakhs

4 Capital work in progress*
Project detclopmcnt e\pcnscs

Jntercst (.aplralizcd

( )thcr government ducs

Capital u'ork in Progress

Gross carrying Value
As on M Apil2023
\ddition dunng thc lcar
l)cletton during the vcar

As at31March2024

.\dditlrn dunng thc lear
l)elctron dunn.rl thc vc:rr

As at 31st M.arch 2025

62.53

603.60

0.65

666.79

666.79

666.79

666.79

62.53

603.60

0.65

666.79

666.79

666.79

666.79\-,
xNote: tr[anagcment of the companl'intends to l)er-elop and operate a hotel and retail facrlities on the land parcel o*-ned br.the companv.
T'he proiect is currentlv in the suspended state. F{ot'ever, the companv intends to conrinue its plan to derelop the envisaged prpject in the
near future.

(a)For capital-work-in progress, following ageing schedule shall be given:

In

In hkhs

b) For capital-u'ork-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its
original plan, follou.ing CWIP completion schedule shall be given:

In

'l'he (-ompant undcrtakcs scr-cral klng-term duration proiects at a rime u{rich rir,nge benveen 3 to 6 r'ears. In s()me cascs the prgiecrs n121: gct

cost attributable to the pro;cct condnues to bc reflected rn C\\'ll) as irr 3l \larch 2025 and 3t \larch 2024, respectir-clr,. Due 16 the abor.c, thc

(.ompirnv is not ablc to furnish the tentative proiect trmelinc ()rplan even th(,ugh the (-<lmpanr,is c<lnfidcnt <lf resumrng rhe pr<licct in future.

CWIP ageing schedule March - 2025

( _\\'il,
.\mount rn (.\\'IP for a period o[ 'l'otirl

Less than 1

I'ear

I -2 r'ears 2-3

\,'ears

\lore than 3 r'eirrs

Proiects'f emporarilv Suspended 666.79 666.79

CWIP ageing schedule March - 2024

( _\\'t t,

\mount in C\t'lP for a pcriod of 'I'otal

Less than 1

vear

1-? r'ears 2-3

vears

\lore than 3 r'eirrs

I)rolccts'l'cmpotrnh. Suspcndccl 666.19 666.19

(,\\'I P

'[ir be completcd in Total

Less than I
Ieitr

1 -? r'ears 2-3

Vears

\lore tl.ran 3 r'cars

I)roiccts'l'cmporlrilr' :uspcndccl 666.19 666.19

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

ffiw'



DLF Aspinu'al Hotels Private Limited
u55 10 1 I IR2007P]'(_037 1 3 I

I{egd. ()fficc -\ddress:Premises No. 22l,2nd Floor, Shopping \lall, -\riun \largDlf (-in', l)hase-[, (iurugram, gan,a,a-122002

Notes to the Financial statements for the vear ended 31st March 2025

5 Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)
(L'nsecurcd, considcrcd goril)

-Secunn' deposrts

6 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances u.ith Scheduled banks

- In current accounts

- Bank deposits marurih. [<rr Iess than 3 monrhs

7 Other Bank Balances
Balances u.ith scheduled banks

- Bank deposits marudfi' f<rr more than 3 months
but less than 12 monrhs

8 Other financial asset (Current)
(L'nsecured, considered good)

- Other receir-ables

1.05

3.0 r

6.02

3.1.08

1.50 1.50

1.50 1.50

4.07 40.10

76.94 JJ.) Iv 76.94 33.51

16.20

16.20

(this qace has been inteationa/l1 lefi blank1

*s\* o'

*/

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

({ In lakhs)
As at

SlstMarcb?iA

/</cnnnrERED\

lleccouNTANy\M,



DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Umited
u551 0 I I IR2(X)jP',rc037 l.i 1

l(egd. t )fficc -\ddress;l)remises \o. 22l,2nd lrloor. Stropping \lall,.\r1un \Iarg,Dli(-in, I)hase-1, (iurugr.m, I tanana-122(x]2
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3lst March 2025

9 Equitv share capital
(A) Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and paid-up share capital and par value per share

Authorised Capital
10,(XX) (prer-i<)us l:ear l(),(XX)) Ficluin Shares o[ { 10,,- each

1,20,(X1,0()() (prer-ious uear 1.20,00,0[X]) Preference Shares of { l(X)r- each

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
10,{}(X) (pretir)us 1.ear l(),(Xn)) l,lguin Sharcs or { l0 - erch [ulll paid

l.(x)

12,0(x).t)()

l.(x)

12,(x )0.00

12,001.00 12,001.00

l.(x) t.(x)
1.00 1.00

v
No. of shares No. of shares

lo,0()() 10,()(x)

10,000 10,000

(C) Rights, preferences and resrictions attached to equity shares
'Ihe companl'- has only one class of e<1urn shares har-ing a par ralue o[{10 per share. Each holder of equitr shares is entitletl to orle \1)te per share.
In the event of licluidation o[ the companv, the holders of equin shares r',-ill be entitled to receive remaining assets o[ the companr, after distribution of all
preferential amounts.'fhe distribution will be in proportion to the numbero[equin shares held br.the shareholders.

details of the

Details of more than 596 shares

Shares held at the end ofthe

(G) Aggregate number ofbonus shares issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period offive vears
immediatelv preceding year ended 31st March, 2025:
'lhc (.ompant-has not issucd irtrt borrus sharcs nor hirs therc been lnl buvback oishares irr rhc current vcar:rnd prcceding f-r\.e \.c;lrs.

ffhit ipa;e hat hun intutionu$' /tft hlunk)

Equity shares

.\t rhe begrnning of thc vcar
:\dd : Change during the vear

At the end of the year

q

Lodhi I)ropern' companv limited (Parent (bmpanr) ['iclurn 10,()()()

l.odhi Propern Iimitccl 10,000 1()( 1",

Lodlri hmirc'd I(XI,,.

o

As at
3lst March 2025

Particulars

(B) Reconciliation of numbers of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear

Particulars

(Amount in lakhs )

As at
3lst March Z)24

As at

Nasre of the shareholder Class ofsharer Aggregate number of shares held

Name of the shareholder No of ehares held in
the co. Percentage of shates held

Particulars

Class No of shares heHin
egglegatc by holding

comPany

Percetrtage of shares held Percentage
chaage during the

year

Equitr' 10.{xx)



DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited
1 55 toI t tRlt xt-1'11.,,r-, -t,

Rcgd ()tticc-\tidrcss:l)rcmises\o.221,2nd[;loor,Shopprng\lall,.\r1un\larg,Dli{.in-, I)l-rase-1,(iuru.glm, llirn.:rna l22t)(12
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 3lst March 2025

l0 Other Equiw
Retained Earning

-Statement of profit anrj l,rss

-\s per Iast bal:rncc sheet

ProFrt,l(l.oss) f<rr the reirr

.\dd: ( )thcr cpmprehcnsiye incrmc
Net deficit in thc staternent of profi and loss

Equiry component of compulsorilv convertible debentures
.'\s per last balancc shect

l)eletrorr: during thc rear

Total Other Equiq.

11 Trade payable
--I'otal ( )utstanding dues ol NISi\IE
.-lirtal ()utstanding ducs oicredrtors orhcr than NISNIE

Trade Payables aeging schedule
Balance as at 3lst 2025

Balance as at 3lst March 202{

12 Other financial liabilities
Secunn' I)eposrts

lntcrest,rccrucd rxr (.(-D'S

13 Other current liabilities
St:rtut<,n dur:s pil tblc

1{ Current Tax liabilities (Ner)
( -rrrrcnt t:tx li:rbrhtrcs Cict ()ipatmcnts)

(.\)

(B)

(.\)+(B)

(llti,; pdte ltat hetn intcntbnul|1' kli b/tnk1

CI{ARTE R ED

ACCOUNTANTS

'-t-_l

(e,620. r 0)

(2.8e)

(9,628.42)

8.32

(9,622.99) (9,620. l0)

l.i,25ir 1i,250

13,250 13,250

i,627.01 3,629.90

2.50

(t.l o

1.37

( ).{ )(rv 2.60 1.,13

in lakhs

ln

\-/

1.19

1 1.()(l

1.19

1.19 12.t9

il.-5 lr.-8

0.75 0.78

1r.i(rl.l5
1.25

(, \I-SIIL Not due 0.41 ( ,.-l I
(ii) \rS\rr: Due 2.t)t) 2.1t9
(iii) ()thers 0.10 ().1rr

(ir) I)isputcd dues. \lS\lL.
(r) l)rsputed ducs-()thers

Total 2.60 2.60

(, \lsNff: Not due I ).:l'l t ,.:+ I
(ii) NTSNIE Due (1.9(r t).9(r
(rr) ( )thers 0.(,6 (,.1 )6

(iii) Disputcd dues-\ISNIE

(ir) Drsputed dues-()thers

Total 1.13 1.13

EL

-*

Particulars As at
3lst March Z)25

(Amount in lakhs )

As at
3lst March 2024

0.30

Outstan4ing for folbwing periode &om due dare of paymcnt
Particuelrs

Less than I veer l-2vcst ?-3 vear More than 3 veans Totd

Particualrs Outstandiag for folbwing periods from due date of pavmenl
lcss than I vear l-2 vear L3veat More than 3 vearB Total



DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited
Lr55 1 01 r IR2007P]'C037 1 3 1

Regd. ()ffice .\ddress:Premises No.22l,2ncl Floor, Shopping Nlall,.\rfun Ntarg,Dlt (-in., Phasc-I, (iurugram, Ilana,a-l22OO2
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

15 Other income
Rental incornc

Interest income on bank deposits

Interest incomc on Income Tax refunds

16 Finance cost
Interest on compulsorilv convernble debentures

Interest others

17 Other expenses

Fees and taxes

Pavment to auditors

;\udit fee*

C)ther services

Legal & professional expense
()ffice expenses

\X'ater and electricin'

Securih, senice expense

Business promotion

Payment to auditors
.\s auditor:

Statuton' auclit tecs "

- Including ()S'l'

18 Tax expense
(,urrent'['ax

Eadier vear "['ax :\djustments

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Accounting (loss)/profit before income tax
Statutorv incrlrnc tax ratc oi25.1-oo (l)rcvi()us vear - 25.1-00)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
'I'ax irnpact oI expense disallowed under incomc tax .\ct
'l'ax relatcd to carlicr vcars

.\dd : Interest u/s 234(-

Total tax expense

D
{

t,,'iCCCUNTANTS

18.55

4.85

0.06

32.29

3.-+3

0.49

23.46 36.21

1.33

0.28

1.33

t.6t 1.33

v

\.,

0.06 0.05

0.45

0.02

1.89

0.25

1 -t.-+ 1

0..t5

0.02

1.00

0.28

0.31

14..18

2.35

18.95 17.07

0.38

0.0-

0.38

0.07

0.4s 0.4s

591

-0.r2

9.22

0.27

5.79 9.49

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied bv statutory income tax rate for the year indicated
are as follows:

2.90

0.'3

-+.96

-0.12

0.22

17.81

-1.-18

+.63

0.2:

0lI

LE,.0

*

5.79 9.49

(Amount in lakhs )

Particulars
For the year ended

31st March 2025
For the year ended

31st March 2024
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Regd. ()ftrcc.\ddress:Premiscs No.22l,2nd filoor. Shopping \lall,.\rjun \larg.l)lf (-in., Phase-I, (]urugram, Ilan.ana-122002
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

19 Earning per equity share
Prof,rt/(l.oss) frrr the rear
I'rofit/Q,oss) attributable to equin. shareholders

'l'otal number ,i equin' shares outstanding at the beginning oi the r,ear
Potential equin' shares in compulsorilr. convcrtiblc debentures
'l otal number oi ecluin shares outstanding ar the end of thc period

\\'eightcd average number of equin shares

Nominal value of equin share (Q

Basic and diluted earnings per equin share (Q
I)iluted per share(Q

([bis space has been intentiona$, leJt blank)

L o

<(

* *

(2.8e)

(2.8e)

10,000

132,500,000

132,510,000

132,510,000

10

(0.00)

(0.00)

in lakhs

8.32

8.32

10,000

132,500,000

132.510,000

132,510,000

10

0.01

0.01

v

CHART ERED

ACCOUNTANTS

For the yeat ended
31st March 2025

Particulars



v

DLF Aspinwal Hotels privare Limited
Lr55 I 0 1 t{R2007PTC 037 1 31

Regd' ()ffice -\ddress:Premises \o. 221,2nd ["loor, Shopping,\lall, .\rjun xlarg, Dlf Cin., phase-1, (iurugram ,tlantna-122002
Notes to the Financial statemenrs for the year ended 3lst March 2025

20. Ratio Analysis for the year ended on 3lst M,arch 2025

(Th* patv bat been intentional$' left blank)

1\

[{
\
\''

CHAiiI
ACCOUN

(r) (-urrent rati<r Decreasc in Curreflt asset 9.22 6.tt 0.51

(b) l)cbt-equin rati<r \,\ \.\ \.\ \\(") Debt service coverage ratio \.\ \.\ \\ \.\
(d) Return on equin'ratio \.\ (0.00) 0.00 (1.3s)(") Inventory turnover ratio \.\ \.\ \.\ N,\
(f) Trade receir.able furnover rati<r \\ \\ \.\ \.\
(g) Trade parablc turnover rati<r \.\ \.\ \.\ N,\
(h) Net capital turnor,cr ratio \.\ \.\ \.\ \.\
(i) Net profit rati<r \.\ \.\ N.\ \.\
(i) Return on capital empl<x.ed \.\ 0.00 0.01 (0.76)
(k) Return on investment \\ N.\ N"\ \.\

(a) Current rati<t Current ,\ssets + Current l,iabilin.
'l'ota.l I)ebt - -['otal(b) I)cbt-equin- rati<r

(") Dcbt scrvice cor,erage ratio items, Interest and 'I'ax + fFinance Cost +
Principal Repavments made during the period for non-current borrou,,ings
(including curren r Nlarurities) l

Earnings before exceptional

(d) X!,u1" on equin'ratio \et / Shareholders' urh'
(.) Invent<ln' turnover ratio Cost of land, plots, development righ ts, constructed properties and others

: .\verage Inventories

(r) J'rade receivable turn(x'er ratio Revenue from operations = .\verage'I'rade Receivables

(g) T'rade pavable tumover ratio Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others
- .\r,erage accounts pavable

(h) Net capital turnover ratir> 'otal Sales - -l'otal

(i) \ct profit ratio \et Profit after'l'ax = Rcvenue from
EBI'| - Total(i) Return on capital emploved

(k) Itcturn on investrnent Net return on Investment + Cost of Investment

\oEL

S.No Reason for Variation As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Variation more than 25
o//o

S.No Ratio Formula



DLF Aspinwal Hotels private Limited
CIN: U55 l0 1HR2007I,IC0371 3 1

llegd' ofFrce Address: otfice Premises No. 22l,2nd Fl_oor, Shopping Mall, Ariun Marg, Dlf ciw, phase-I. Gurugram, Ha,ryma-l2z1g2
Notes to the Finansial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

21 The Company has accumulated loss amounting to Rs 9,622.99 lacs (?rerious year Rs g,620.l0lacs). During the ly z0-zl, the parent oompany hasinfused Rs 13,250 lacs in form of ccDs antl has also assured its continued financial support to the company rtself and through the Ultrmate parent
Companv' as and rvhen needed, so :ts to enable the Company to continue its <-rperaticrns as a going .orra"rn in tbreseable turur.e. Acc.rdi'gly, thefrnancial statements har.e been prepared on a Going concern basis.

22 Related party disclosures

a) Relationships

Information required to be disclosed under IND AS 24 on "Relatecl Party Discloo^ures"

(i) Parent company at any time during the year ended/previous year
l,odhi Properry company limited (Parent companl)

(ii) Intermediate Parent company at any time during the year ended/previous year
DLIr Limited

(iii) Ultimate Parent company at any time during the year ended/previous year
Rajdhani Invesrments & Agencies Privrrte Limited

V b) The following transactions were carried out q'ith related parties in the ordinary course of business

In lakhs

In

23 (i) Capital commitment as on 31st March, 2025 is Nil @rerious year - Nil).
(ii) Contingent liability rv.r.t. income ta-r demand as on 3lst March, 2025 is ( Nil /- previous year- Nil).

v

25 During the F\' 2022-23, the BOD have approved the withdrarval of scheme of amalgamation inr-<rlving DLF Aspinrval Hotels private Limited (the
Transferor Comparues) with Lodhi Propertl'Company Limited ('the Transferee Company) after taking into consideration, the inclependent
business opportunities and potential for project der.elopment on the land parcel.

26 'fhe Company has used a tlxrd Party operated accounting software for maintaining its books of account anil that the audit trail feature of the said
sofhvare rvas enabled and operated throughout the vear ftrr all relevant transactions recorded in the sofltrvare and the company persen.ed the audit
trarl in full compliance with the requirements of section 128(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. in respect of the Frnancial year ended March 31, 2025.
I Iowever, in respect of the financial years ended March 31, 2024, Man'agement is not in prrssessi<ln of Sen ice Organisation C<;ntr'ls report (SOC I
type 2 report) to determine rvhether the requirements of above Rule has been met

27 ln the opinion of the Board of Directors current assets, loans and arJvances have a value on realizatioo ir: the orclilaq, course of business at Icast
equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Bdance Sheet and provisions for all knorvn liabilitres have been made.

&

-;i\**q+
n

SIA

Interest expense on convertible debentures

1.33 1.33

Share

r.00 1.00
Convertible Debentures

Iimited r3,250 13,250
Interest accrued on convertible debentures
I-odhi Properw comprrny limited L19 1.19

Earnin.qs Nil Nil
Outgo Nil Nil

u

Lmited

Lmited
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DLF Aspinwal Hotels private Limited
(-lN: U55 1 0 I I lR2007tvt'(_037 131

Rcgd' ()tfice '\ddress: ()fficc l)remises No. 221,2nd Floor, Shopping \lall, -\riun \larg,l)lf Cih-, phase-1. ()urugram ,llan.ana-122002Notes to the Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31st March 2025

28 'l'he companv is primarilv engaged in the business of cokrnizatioo and real Eshrc Development, which as per Indian ..\ccounting Stantlard - 108on 'opemting Segrrents' as Specified under sectioo 133 of the companies tct,2013 read with rule 7 ofcompanies (.\ccounts) Rules, 2014 (asamended) is considered to be the onlv rcPortable br-rsiness segment. The Company is primarilr op.rri"g in r'"ai" *ii.i i. ..rn.ia.r.a ,* 
" 

.ingt.geographical segment.

29 No provision for tax f<rr the vear has been made in the accounts as there is no taxable income under the ptovisioos of the Income-Tax Act 1961.'I he Compaq follows notifred IND .-\S 12 - lncome Taxes, as per section 133 of companies .\ct, 2013 read $.ith rules made thereuflder. TheCompanv has incured losses in the cu(ent review r.ear and also has carl forward business losscs under the 'lhx Laws. In the absence ofavailabilioofconvincing evideace as to availabiliq ofsufficient future raxable income, the companli prudeotlr. decided not to recognise asset on curtent reviewyear and carn forward business losses.

30 F-inancial figures have been rounded off to the oearest rupee in l,xkhs

31 Captial Malegement
For the pu4rose ofthe Cnmpany's capital management' equiry includes issued equiq capital and all othet equig reserves attriburable ro the equit,shareholders and net debt includes interest bearing I<nns and borrowings less curenr ir-estment, ,na .".t '"rri ."ri.luluJ."s. rr,. p.i-u.,uobiective of the companr/s capita.l managemeot i-s to safeguard continuin , maiotain a strong cr.ait otirrg 

^"a 
t Jriy cffi ratios in order tosupport its business and pruvide adequate retum to shareholders through crmtinuing growth

1'he Cornpany manages its capital structure and makes adlustmeots in light of changes in economic conditions and rhe tequirements of the fioancial
covcnants The ftrnding tequirement is met through a mixture ofequity, internal accruals,long term borrowings and short term borowings. The
Company mooitots capiml using a geariog ratio, which is net debr divided bl total capiral plus net debt

In order to achieve this overall oblective, the companv's capital menagement, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it mees financial coveoants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borowing that de6ne capital structure requiremenrs.

in lakhs

\r- (lhis space has been intentionalfi left blank)

L;f1 -r
-\r

ft
I-IARTE P.E

CCOiJNTANI

1-{L V

I)ebt
(-ash & bank balanccs 81.01 73.61
Net debt (81.01) (73.61)

3,628.01 3,630.90
Debt/Equity (0.02) (0.02)

Particulars As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Total equity
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Regd ()t[rce \dclress: ( )tfice Premrses \o. 221' 2nd Floor, Shopprng \lall,.\qun \larg. Dlf (-rn.. phase-I. ciurugram, t{an.ana-ll2(x)2
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended jlst March Z)25

32 Financial risk management

Financial insrruments by category

i) Fair values hierarchy

f:lnancra] rnstnrments arc meirsured at fitr value rn the tinancral sutem.nt md are grouped rnto three ler.el ,;[ t:arr rirlue hrerarchv. The rhree levels aredctrned hased rrn the.bsen'abrrtn ()isrgnrticant rnput to rhe measuremenr as tblkrrvs:

l.e.el l: Quoted prrce runadjustedj ln adr'c market tor rhe tinancral rnsrrument
Le.el 2: lnput other than quoted pflces rncluded urthrn le'el t that are obsen'able tbr the assers or habrlrtres, arher direcrll.or rndrrectly
l,evel 3: Unobsen-able rnpurs tor rhe assets or habrhnes

ii) Financral instruments measured at iarr r';rlue-recurnng lirr r.arue measurements- \rl

iii) Far r,alue oi rnsrruments measured at amoftrsed cost:

v

v

The companv's actn'ttres exPose lt to market nslq hqurdrn' nsk and cretlt nsk- The Companr''s board of tlrrecrors has or,erall responsrbdrn. for theestabhshment and oserslght of the (iompanrJs nsk ma'agement frameu'ork. Thrs note esplarns the sources of nsk .,.hrch the entrn, rs exp.sed to andh.u- tlre e,bn manages the nsk and the related trnpact ur ihe fr.anc,al sratements.

iv) Financial Instrumens bv category
The carrying value and fair value of linencial insrrument bv categories as fo[oq,s:

v) Risk management

ilsstts rs m:trtlurcd bt mrxtrtorurg tlrr: fl:crrr.crabrhn of sttch .tnl(rtrfltr c()ntlllu( ,rrsL . u l:Jt

in lakhs

nsk relatctl t() thrse othcr turtncral
c(xltr()l <t st('rll ur placc rnsure tltr

(A) Credit risk
'rhe cornpan' assesses and rna,ages credrt nsk of fmancral assets basetl on tbllo*'u45 categones arnred on the basrs of assumptrons. 

'rputs 
a.d factorsspecific to the class of fmancral assets.

a) Credit risk management
i) Credit riskrating

The companl' assesses and m'inages credlt nsk of tinancral assets basetl o. ftrll.*.rng categones amved on tlre basrs 
'f assumptro,s. rnputs and factorsspecrfic to the class offuranclal assets.

.\: l.os. credrt nsk
B: \k;derate credrt nsk
C: [ [rgh credrt nsk

Cash & cash equrvalenrs and bank deposrts

ilccorults ur drfferent banks across the countn-.

( )thcr tirrancral .rssets mc:lsu*(l it .rnl()rtucd c()st urclu(lci ltxr,s l.d ilth,ancrs iccunh deposlts :urd othcrs. (.retfit

:j).t-

tuttc uttcrrt:rl

a

IiARTERE
COUNTANT$

it \

()ther Non (-urrenf flrnancral assets
(lash and equrvalents
( )ther bank bala,rrce

Other Current Frnancal assets

Financial assets

Level 3
Level 3

Level 3
Level 3

I.50

+.07

7(r.9-l

1.50

+.07

;6.91

1 .50

+0. l()

.33.5 I

16.10

l .5t)

+r ). 10

3.3.5 I

16.20Total financial assets 82.5t 82.5r 91.31 91.31
Financial liabilities

( )thcr turancral habrltres

ratle pavablcs Level 3

[,evel -]

2.6()

l. l9
l.6()

Ll9
t.-t2

12. leTotal fi nancial liabiliries 3.79 13.62 13.62

Financial assets

Other \ir:n Current fuiancral assets

Cash and equt\alents
()ther bank balance

Othrr (-urrent futancral assets

I-erel 3

lrvel 3

Level l
Lctel 3

1.50

4.07

76.94

t.5{)

+0.I0

33.51

I (r.2()
Total financial assets

82.51 9 1..3 IFinancial liabilities
Tradt, palablcs
()ther furancral habilrtres

kvel 3

l.evel 3
2.(fr

l.19
l.+2

12. l9
3.79 13.62

(lredrt nsk

I.rqrrrrlrtl nsk

( lash antl cash equl'aleflts, trade
recerrables. financral assets measured at
amortrsed cost

Borrou.'mgs and other habrhnes -\var.labilrn'of commrtted cretlrt Lnes and
borrorvurg facr.htres

\gurg analrsrs llank dcposrrs. tllersrficaturn of assct base
credrt Imrts

Rolkrg cash florv
firrec:rsts

l.ou crcdrt nsk ( -ash and cash equrvalents. ul\.estlncnts.
loans. other tuurncral asscts

I I nrrxrtlr expectetl crcdrt loss

\lodcrate crrdrt nsk \ot Lrti' trrnc cretlrt krss
[[ri{h crcdrt nsk \ot;rpphclbk. I.ric trnrc crctht Irss or tilh ti rr

.lnr(,uilti .rr( \\.lth[r tlctirrcrl lunrts.

*

Managemcnt

Assct group Basis of categorisatioo

Particulare
lrYcl March

Fair

l.+:
t2.t9

3.79

Perticulets L-ercl ilsr Merch 202i 3tsr

Total financi al liabiliries



\: I-0u, crctlrt rrsk end caslr equrvalents, ul\.estmefl ts.
and other furancral assets

Ir2 5I ;5.1 I

DLF Aspinwal Hotels private Limited
(ll\: 1 55 I t) I I IR20rr;p1'611-37 1 

j,
Regd ()fhcc \tltircss: ()ificel)reflIses\,221'2ntlFlor;r.shoppurg\lall,.\r1un\larg.Dlf(irn'.[)hase-1.(]urugranr.Han.arra-122t](t2

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3lst March 2025

under credit

As at 3lst 202:5

ii) Concentratron of fmancral assets

The Companv's prurcrpal busuress actrqtres aie constructron antl developmeut of real eshte prorects and alt other related actlatres. fhe Companr.,soutsrandrng recervables are for real estate prolect developer busmess.

b) Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
The Cornpanv provrdes firr 12 month e\pecte(l credrt losses tbr follot-rrg hnalcral assets -

As at 2021

V

(B) Uquidiw risk
Lrqurdltl' nsk rs the nsk that the Companv u'rll encounter drfficuln ur meetrflg the obLgatrons assocared ulth rts tinancral habrLtres that are settletl bIdeLvenng cash or arrother Ffrancral asset. The (iompanr''s approach to flranagmg hquidin rs to ensure as tar as possrble. that rt wrll have sufficrerrt
[rqurdrtr to meet tts labrhtres u.hen ther.are due.

'\lanagemenr momtors rollmg forecasts of the Companr's hqurdrn posrtroil and cash and cash equrvalents on the basN 6f expectetl cash fl.u.s. Thecompan| takes rrto account the Lqurdrn' of the market rn u.hrch the entrn. operates.

Maturities of fi nancial tiabilities
Thc tables belo*' analrse the Compant's furancral lubilrtres rnto relevant marurrt' grouptrrp based on the,. contracnral rnatuntres.

tn

ln

v

C) Market Risk

a) Interesr Rare Risk

i) Uabilities
The Companr's tixed rate borrorvurgs are carnctl lt amofiscd crsr 'fhcr are theretbre n.r suhitrt to ,nterest rare nsk as detined rn Ind 1S 107, srnce nerther rhe carn.lng zrmounr nor rhe tuturr r-ashllo\.s rvrll tlucnrarc becausr o[ a chanqe rn rnarkct rnterest rntcs.

ii) Assers

lrct,ttrsr ,,i a chalt.qt rrt rn.lrkrt rnt(rrsl r,ll(s

tg

ICHAR

ACCOU

{DflE E

NIANTS

Cash and cash eqursalents +.07 1.0;Other bank balance ;6.91 i(r.9{
Current financral assets

\on Current furancral assets I.-;l) 1.5()

(-ash antl cash equl\-alents +il. I() +i). I 0
bank balance .33.r1 33 5r( )ther (lurrent frnatrcral asscts 16.20

I (r.ll)()ther \on (lurrent tinancnl assets l 5tt l.;()

Non-derivatives
Borrou'u45
'frade par,able

Other t-urancral habdrtres

2.60

l.l9
2.fi
1.19

Total 3.79
3.79

Non-derivatives
Borros.rngs
'l rade pavable

C)ther fnancral habr}tres

l{l
12. te

r.iz
12.t9

Total 13.62
13.62

Ft-

*

rating Slst March ZIA Slst March 2{}2t

Paniculars
Ectimatcd grms

clrryingsouot a
d€fmlt

Expcaed credit
loss€s

C*ry,ing.rmount net of impainncat
provision

As a 3ler March,2025 Lees rhm I yeai l-2ye* L3 ycar Motc thant ycre Tord

at 3lst March, I)Z
I:se than I year l-2yaar 2-3year Morc thao 3 yeae Total

Particulars
Eatimated grosa

carrying arnount at
dGfarh

Expccredcredit
losees

Carwiag rnouot net of impeirrreDt
prodsion
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33 Disclosures under the Micto, smarl and medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (.,MSMED Act, T06,) is as under:
(Amount in Lakhs

The above disclosure has been determined to the extent such patties have been identified on the basis of informauon arailablewith the Compaw. This has been telied upon br the au&ors.

(this rpace hat been intentionall1, left blank)

q
CHARTE RED
ACCOUNTANT$

t

the amount and the,) lntere S duepnncipal thereon anto ASremalilng unpaid )' supplier
theat ofend each accountlng \'ear;

2.50 1.37

ii) the amount of interesr
amounts of the pa\.ment
accounting vear;

paid bv the buver in
made to the supplier

terms of section 16, alongr,rrth the
berond the appointed dar- during each

\il \il

year)
}IS}IED

the amount fo duemterest and,, for the of lnparable penod delar making palment
beenhave but(which thepaid theberond butappointed '*ithoutdr)' dunng adding

1nthe terest under 2006specified -\ct,

Nil Nil

ir) the amouflt of interest
Year; and

remaining unpaid at the end of each accou"t .rgaccrued and \il \il

the amoun o furtherf tere111 due and lneven theremalrung pai'able succeeding veafs
suchuntil whendate mterestthe ASdues above afe theto smallpaidactuallv ente{pflse,

thefor oe f disallowance aaspufpo deductible under Section 23expenditure

\il \il

EL

*

q

As at 31st As at 31st
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34 Othet stanrtory infotmation for the yeat eaded 3 1 st llarch , 2025 and 3lst \Iarch, 2O24

(i) The company does not have anr benami_PtoPefi, where anv procee,liqg has beeo ioitiared or pendirg against the companyfor holding anY beoami proPertr uoder the Beoami iransactions @tohibitiJd -\ct, roas 1+s of r oiej aJ nlles made theteunder

(ii) The companl do not have an\- transactions with compaoies struck off under Section 24g ofthe companies -\cq 2013.

(iii) The company do not ha* any chatges ot satisfaction which is )'et to be registered with Regstrar of companies beyond thestatutory period.

(iv) The compaoy have oot traded ot invested in cr,?to curencv ot Yirtual curency duriag the 6aancial year.

(v) The company has not advaoced.or loaqed ot invested fuods to any other persoo(s) ot entity(ies), including foteiga entities(Intetmediaties) with the undectanding that the Intermediag, shall:

(a) ditecdy or inditecds lend ot invest in other persons or entities identified io any manaer whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (Jltimate Beneficiaries); or

@) provide any g,aratrtee, secudtv or the like to ot oa behalfof the Ultimate Bene6ciaties.

(vi) The Compaoy has not rcceived aoy fund from any petson(s) or entitv(ies), iocluding foreign entities (Irundiag paq) with the
rmderstaoding (whether tecorded in r.dting or otherurise) that the Compaoy shalt

(a) ditecdv ot indiecdy leud or invest in other persons or entities identified io any mannet whatsoever bv ot on beha.lf of the
Ftrnding Pam (Jltimate Beoe6ciaries); or

(t) pror"ide anv guarantee, secutitl or the like on beharf of the Urtimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The company does not ha'e anv such Eansaction which is not recorded in the books ofaccount that has been surendetedot disdosed as income in the ax assessments under the Income-tax lct, 1961 (such as, seatch or suwey or any other) telelznt
provisions of the Income-tax -,Lct, 1961.

(viii) The companv has not been declated wilfirl defa.ltet by any baok or Enancial insritutioo or Govetnmeot or any
Go!'emmeat authodw ot other lendet, in accordance with the guidelines on wil-6rl defaulters issued br the n"se^t l"'barrt of frrdi".

(rx) The_Compaoy has complied with the number oflavec prescdbed under clause (gf ofsection 2 of the comparues -\ct, 2013
read with the companies @estdction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 ftom the dal or rur r-pt"-.ota,iorr.

35 Previous 1:s21 figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to correspond to current 
'ear 

classification.

For and on behalf of the Board o[ Directors
DLF Aspinwal Hotels Private Limited

)\r/
i'bunnrEREi(d
Inccouuinuis/ iVl .k*' U Chandra Agarwal

Director Director
DI\: 0900+5e1 DIN:0081+-t980ft

Place: Gunrpyam

Date: 01 \Iav 2025


